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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Judith's Fancy is located on the north shore of St. Croix, 
tW© miles west of Christiansted. The complex consists of a 
nrpii shaped sugar factory, a wind mill for grinding the cane, 
a large chimney from the later steam mill, a wind driven water 
well and a small house, greatly altered.

The factory consists of two parts, the top bar of the "T" 
being two bays by nine bays (22' x 96"), two stories in height 
with the remains of a timber trussed gabled roof. This part of 
the factory is divided by a stone rubble partition creating 
spaces of four bays to the south, five bays to the north. The 
upper floor was framed with heavy timbers that rested on a brick 
lined coping set into the two foot thick coral and rubble walls.

An 18'6" x 36' wing has been attached slightly to the north 
of center to the east facade of the long section of the factory. 
This gabled roof part was the boiling room and retains its three 
section boiling bench with fire boxes beneath. The east-west 
longitudinal walls are six bays long, with a paved elevated 
terrace along the south end wall. All openings in the factory 
have brick lined splayed jambs and segmental arches on the 
interior, tapering to flat heads on the exterior face. The 
jambs are plastered and the openings have wood casings and sills. 
The walls are predominately coral block, with some stone rubble 
occurring in scattered areas. A slightly projecting, flat 
cornice surrounds the entire factory.

A one story, gable roofed coral block cookhouse (10'8" x 
15') is appended to the northeast corner of the boiling room 
section. The north wall has a charcoal stove and a chimney 
with single windows in each of the east and west side walls. 
Also, a gabled roof rubble cistern is attached to the south end 
wall of the larger part of the factory. There is a later shed 
roof addition at the southeast corner of the terrace to the 
rear of the boiling room.

The windmill tower, on a circular platform, is constructed 
of coral block and rubble and lies north of the factory. Conical 
in form, typical of sugar mills throughout the West Indies, the 
mill is 30' in diameter at the base. It has been enclosed with 
rubble and used as a cistern, probably shortly after it was 
replaced with a steam mill, after 1850. The massive coral 
block chimney from the steam mill, 9'7" square at its base, 
and four stories high, remains between the earlier windmill 
and the factory.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Estate Judith's Fancy is significant for its 19th century 
remains of typical buildings of a sugar plantation. Further, 
the site is the location of the government headquarters during 
the French occupation of St. Croix from 1651-1665 under the owner­ 
ship of the Knights of Malta.

In 1651 the French government sold St. Croix to the Knights 
of Malta, a French religious order whose head was Louis XIV. 
The Knights of Malta took possession of St. Croix in 1653 and held 
the island for the Crown. As a religious order, they provided 
the French government with an establishment in the West Indies 
for the service and defense of Christianity. They were also 
engaged in conversion of the "savages" to the Catholic religion. 
Their headquarters were located at Judith's Fancy, then named 
Rosiere. In 1665 the Knights of Malta sold all of their priveleges 
and possessions to the French West India Company for 500,000 livres

Louis XIV took over the island in 1664 because it was 
proving to be an unprofitable investment for the French government. 
By 1695 the population of French settlers had decreased to 147 
plus 623 slaves. The French abandoned the island for St. 
Dominique. In 1733 St. Croix was sold to the Danish West India 
and Guiena Company for approximately 758,000 livres.

During the 17th and 18th centuries, the Danes joined other 
European nations in securing colonies in the West Indies. The 
Danes hoped that their colonies would provide them with a per­ 
manent site for their trading and commercial interests. Agri­ 
culture was to serveX as a supplement to the income provided 
by commerce and trading.

St. Croix surpassed the other islands in the Danish colonies 
in its agricultural development and proved to be more beneficial 
to the Danes. By the 1780' s, sugar plantations on St. Croix were 
prospering. By 1812-1814 sugar production on the island was at 
its height. There were 175 plantations in operation with 75% 
of their acreage in cane.

After the Napoleonic wars, plantation agriculture began
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A cylindrical wind powered well tower is located south of 
the factory, with a belfry built into the northeast quadrant 
and an animal watering trough constructed as part of the tower 
walls at grade.

A small residence, possibly incorporating the original 
slave quarters or an overseer's house, is situated northwest 
of the factory ruins. It has been greatly altered and is of 
little architectural value.
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to decline in the Danish West Indies. Sugar production had 
expanded to other areas such as Cuba and Puerto Rico whose more 
fertile soil gave them an advantage over the Danish West Indies. 
Surdened by heavy debt, the planters found it impossible to take 
appropriate measures to maintain the soil. Agricultural methods 
were generally inefficient and milling operations were wasteful 
and uneconomic. Europeans added more competition for the Danes 
with the development of the sugar beet industry. Absentee 
landlordism made it difficult to maintain sufficient control 
over the plantations' production. Slavery, which provided the 
planters with che'ap labor, was abolished in 1848 and, with the 
increase in operating expenses, many plantations discontinued 
production.

Estate Judith's Fancy was known as Hemmers Plantation or 
Hemmersfryd in 1766 and was patented to Jens Pieter Hekimers. 
Pieter Heyliger, who was an extensive land owner during the 
18th century, named the estate Judith's Fancy after his daughter.

From 1873-1876 Judith's Fancy operated with estates Anna's 
Hope and Roberts Hill. Records reveal Judith's Fancy still in 
operation as a sugar plantation until 1889 with production de­ 
creasing. By the turn of the century, like many other plantations 
in St. Croix, Judith's Fancy ceased to operate as a sugar plan­ 
tation.

The ruins of the factory at Judith's Fancy are of archi­ 
tectural significance because of the classic revival details, 
the plan, the method of construction and the use of local building 
materials, all typical of sugar factories in the Virgin Islands at 
this period. The windmill used to crush the sugar cane is also 
typical of the many conical structures that remain on St. Croix.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The north boundary of the Estate Judith's Fancy site commences 
at the Intersection of Carlb Drive and Hamilton Drive and runs 450' in 
a northeasterly direction, thence southeasterly 350' to a point, thence 
west 375' to a point in Hamilton Drive, thence north 350' to the point 
of orgin.
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